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historic name Marshfield City Hall
other names/site number Coos Bay City Hall, Old City Hall
2. Location
street & number. 375 West Central Avenue not for publication _N/A
city or town Coos Bay vicinity___N/A
state Oregon code OR county. Coos code___011

zip code 97420

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, | hereby certify
that this _ X nomination request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for
registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property X meets _____ does not meet the
National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant __ nationally __
statewide X locally. (_X See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

%«ﬂ. lA Jaruary 10, 1997

Signature of certifying official Deputy SHPO Date

Oregon State Historic Preservation Office
State or Federal agency and bureau
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In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. ( ___ See

continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signature of commenting or other official Date

5 State or Federal agency and bureau

I hygy certify that this property is:
__¥ _entered in the National Register . 2/ / q 7
____See continuation sheet.
_____determined eligible for the
National Register
___See continuation sheet.
_____determined not eligible for the

National Register
removed from the National Register

other (explain):

Wtwe of Keeper Date of Action

5. Classification

Ownership of Property (Check as many boxes as apply)
X ___ private
public-local
public-State
public-Federal

Category of Property (Check only one box)
X ___building(s)
district
site

structure

object
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Number of Resources within Property

Contributing  Noncontributing

1 buildings
sites
structures
objects

1 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National Register ___N/A

Name of related multiple property listing (Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)
N/A
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Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions)

Cat: VERNMEN Sub: __city hall

GOVERNMENT correctional facility
GOVERNMENT fire station

Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions)
Cat: COMMERCE Sub: __ restaurant
COMMERCE business
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‘ 7. Description
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j Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions)
| Late 19th and 20th Century Revivals/Classical Revival
|
|

(20th Century Classical)

|
w Materials (Enter categories from instructions)

foundation Concrete
roof Asphalt
walls Concrete
other

Narrative Description (Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation
sheets.)

8. Statement of Significance

—— o S s
—— — o e

Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark "X" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for
National Register listing)

X __A. Property is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad pattern
of our history.

@

Property is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction o
represents the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values, or represents a significant
and distinguishable entity whose components lack individual distinction.

D. Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history.

o

Criteria Considerations (Mark "X" in all the boxes that apply.)

A. Owned by a religious institution or used for religious purposes.

B. Removed from its original location.




- USDI/NPS NRHP Registration Form
Marshfield City Hall
Coos County, Oregon Page 5

E. A reconstructed building, object, or structure.
F. A commemorative property.

G. Less than 50 years of age or achieved significance within the past 50 years.

Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions)

Politics/Government

lopment
Architecture

Period of Significance 1923 - 1944

Significant Dates

Significant Person (Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

Cultural Affiliation

Architect/Builder ___John Everett Tourtellotte

and Frank Hummel

Narrative Statement of Significance (Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation
sheets.)

Vo S 0 S D T e T Sy A G At SV AL ST S S ity Sy AP S S ekt SV e i

=3 ——

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS)
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9. Major Bibliographical References

-

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS)

preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) has been requested.
previously listed in the National Register.

previously determined eligible by the National Register.

designated a National Historic Landmark.

recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #

recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #

Primary Location of Additional Data

State Historic Preservation Office

Other State agency

Federal agency

Local government

University

Other

Name of repository: Coos Bay Public Library’s Oregon Archives
Southwestern Oregon Community College Special Collection

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property _Less than one acre  (0.22 acres) Coos Bay, Oregon 1:24000
UTM References (Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
10 401600 4802180 3

4
See continuation sheet.

N =

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)
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11. Form Prepared By

——— - S o o o o —— -

nameltitle Steven L. Clay, Principal/Partner

organization _Crow/Clay and Associates, Architecture and Planning date___January 30, 1996

street & number 125 W. Central Avenue, Suite 400 telephone___(541) 269-9388

city or town Coos Bay state_ OR _ zip code__ 97420
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Submit the following items with the completed form:
| Continuation Sheets

Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.

A sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items (Check with the SHPO or FPQ for any additional items)

Property Owner
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(Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.)

name___Thomas G. Thompson and Barbara Thompson

street & number___540 Newport Avenue telephone_ (541) 267-5897

city or town___Coos Bay state_ OR  zip code__ 97420
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MARSHFIELD CITY HALL (1923)
(Coos Bay City Hall, Old)

375 West Central Avenue

Coos Bay, Coos County, Oregon

COMMENTS OF THE STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE

The two-story Classical-style building of concrete on daylight basement which was erected in
1923 as the fire resistant city hall of Marshfield was the affirming result of losing the old town
hall of frame construction, which burned in the Front Street fire the year before. The brisk and
dignified new city government building, efficiently scaled for a small city, was designed in the
tradition of Beaux Arts Classicism by J. E.Tourtellotte (1869-1939) of the Boise, Idaho firm of
Tourtellotte and Hummel, well known as architects of the Idaho State Capitol. From 1922 to his
to retirement in 1930, John Tourtellotte maintained an office in Portland to expand his reach
from the inland Pacific Northwest to western Oregon. He opened the Portland office with Frank
K. Hummel, son of his Boise partner. During the years he centered his work in Oregon,
Tourtellotte designed the Coos Bay National Bank, North Bend Hotel, the Lithia Springs (Mark
Anthony) Hotel, Ashland; the Redwoods Hotel, Grants Pass; the John Jacob Astora Hotel,
Astoria; the.Baker Hotel, St. Joseph's Hospital in La Grande; and the Douglas County
Courthouse, Roseburg.

The City Hall occupies a site of just under a quarter of an acre at the southeast corner of the
intersection of Central Avenue and Fourth Street in the heart of the central business district of the
major port and trading center on the southern Oregon coast. The building has a footprint roughly
95 feet square and is oriented to the north, fronting on Central Avenue. In the original

+  configuration, the city's fire department occupied the building's south section. In 1944, the City
of Marshfield reincorporated as City of Coos Bay. Ten years later, the fire department moved to
an annex adjoining on the south. Expansion of services in the post war period prepcipitated the
first substantive adaptation of interior space to accommodate changing needs. The council
chamber, which was open to the second story and skylighted, was filled in at the upper level with
offices and a courtroom. Public use of the building ended in 1978, when a new city hall was
opened at 500 Central, two blocks to the west. The fire station doors fronting on South Fourth
Street were replaced by storefront windows in the first of a series of adaptive alterations for
commercial purposes.
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Although the grand council hall is effaced, the entry hall still reflects the Classical program, with
beamed ceiling, elaborate cornice moldings, Tuscan pilasters, bases, and architrave door frames.
Current owners have been embarked on an adaptive use rehabilitation since acquiring the
property in 1995. Their plans call for primary function as a conference center which utilizes the
upper council chamber section as a ballroom with dining space on either side. Among several
small, but gratuitous and ultimately reversible exterior alterations effected in the present project
are the addition of a faux marble finish to colossal engaged columns of the portico (originally
formed concrete, parged and painted) and attachment of underscale recumbent lion sculptural
figures to the tops of entrance stairway wing walls.

Marshfield City Hall, or the old Coos Bay City Hall, presents formally composed street
elevations faced with smooth-finished stucco and detailed in the Roman Classical idiom with
high podium, two-story pilaster colonnade that is not static, but varied; a full Classical
entablature, and an attic parapet with low triangular and battlemented gables accented with
cartouches and stylized New Art pendant motifs. Either street facade is organized with slightly
projecting corner pavilions. On the principal facade is a central portico with block modillioned
cornice and paired, colossal engaged columns of the Tuscan order. Characteristic of the
economical finesse of detail which distinguishes the work of John Tourtellotte is the treatment of
otherwise taut-surfaced spandrels with simple, central square bosses. Neither is the fenestration
static, though it is scrupulously formal in organization. Double-hung wood window sash,
essentially without framing elements in the concrete wall, have eight lights over one in the upper
story. The main entry is intact with its top lights, side lights, and original glazed double-leaf
door.

The building meets National Register Criterion C as the outstanding local example of finely
proportioned and detailed 20th century Classical architecture by a leading regional firm. Itis
grander in scale than Tourtellotte's distinctive Coos Bay National Bank with its bowed corner,
once domed. The city hall meets Criterion A as the seat of local government in the historic
period of significance extending from 1923 to 1944, when the town ended 70 years of corporate
identity as Marshfield. The building's construction epitomizes the period of the city's period of
greatest upbuilding, spurred not only by fire which destroyed the old city center extending along
the waterfront, but by completion of transportation links by land and sea which gave Coos Bay
its prominence in coastal shipping.

Marshfield, an old settlement on Coos Bay, quickly emerged as a lumber manufacturing town
with fishing and ship building as complementary industries. In the early 20th century, lumber
~ interests promoted dredging of the Coos River channel for improved shipping. Dredge spoils
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were used to build up shoreline property for development. At the time of United States
involvement in the First World War, Coos Bay was identified as a center of ship building on the
West Coast, and rails were brought to the docks as a consequence. From that point, the town
became, in the words of the Dictionary of Oregon History, "a roistering industiral city" in which
"the mills grew to greater size and output." It was at the crest of such growth that the Marshfield
City Hall was erected. From the time city government entered the building, in 1923, until the
reincorporation as Coos Bay toward the end of the Second World War, the city hall at Fourth and
Central was the seat from which municipal officers and elected officials maintained law and
order and guided development of the town's modern infrastructure.
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OPENING STATEMENT:

The Marshfield City Hall, currently known as The Old City Hall, was built in 1923 using fireproof construction
methods and materials. Designed to replace the wood frame Town Hall which was destroyed by fire in 1922,
it also housed the police and fire departments. Designed by John Tourtellotte in the Portland office of the firm
of Tourtellotte and Hummel, it retains a high degree of integrity in its site and in its facade. The essential interior
organization has undergone modifications as the city government expanded with the growth of the City of Coos
Bay, and subsequent owners have adapted the building for commercial uses.

The style of the building is Classic Revival style with primary references to the Roman orders. The exterior of
the building remains true to the original facade, as can be seen by comparing the current day facade and the
architects sketch published in the Coos Bay Times before construction in 1922. On the interior, the main
circulation areas retain an appreciable amount of original trim, especially in the main entry hall and stairway.

Structurally, the building is in good condition despite appreciable settlement of the south side of the structure.
Built on filled tidal flats, the central section of Coos Bay experiences subterranean movement relative to tidal
and dredging action in the adjacent bay. Fortunately, this settlement has been uniform and no structural
damage is evident. The roof shows no leakage and the facade has been recently patched and painted.
Having outgrown this building, the City Hall was moved to a new facility in 1978. Old City Hall has recently been
rehabilitated to serve as an entertainment facility with a ballroom, restaurants and lounges in the larger public
areas of the building and office spaces in the other portions.

SITE:

The Old City Hall building is situated in a prominent location in the heart of downtown Coos Bay. It occupies
a 100 foot square site at the corner of Central Avenue and Fourth Street. Central Avenue is the historic “spine”
of the city’s downtown, running from the waterfront to the hills west and above the downtown area. This axis
is being reclaimed by the city as the 1960's urban experiment of “mall building” comes to an end. Coos Bay
has reopened three blocks of Central Avenue that were closed to vehicles by the construction of the mall. The
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mall section in front of the Old City Hall has recently reopened and the fourth and final block is currently in the
design stages for its transfiguration. The rehabilitation of the Old City Hall's building facade by a new owner
.and the removal of the obscuring mall appurtenances occurring simultaneously stimulated action to have this
important building listed in the National Register of Historic Places.

The building's monumental entry facade faces north onto Central Avenue. This front facade has remained
unchanged through the life of the building.

The west facade abuts South 4th Street, an important north south street. This facade still expresses the high
stained glass windows that backed the council chambers in the center of the facade. The pair of double doors
that originally housed the fire department's steamer engine and subsequent equipment, followed by the police
departments cruisers in the mid 1950's have been filled with walls and large display windows by later owners
who have used the space to house eating establishments.

To the south the original facade underwent the most drastic change of all the facades when the fire department
constructed an annex that abutted the old building for half of its length. Doors and windows were infilled and
a new passage was established for the fire department to maintain contact with the police department which
expanded into the space the fire department vacated.

At the east the building fronts a narrow alley that was used by the police department for transporting prisoners
to the jail, that was located in the south east corner of the building. At the present time this alley way is used
to provide an accessible entrance into the restaurant occupying the old fire department bay.

Nearby are several historic buildings, the majority constructed within ten years of the date of the Old City Hall.
Two blocks to the east are the Chandler Hotel building (1909) and adjacent Security Bank Building(1919). The
Hub Building(1914), the Coke Building(1910) and the Coos Bay National Bank(1923). The Palace Building and
Noble Theater building are one block to the east along Central Avenue, and the Myrtle Arms Apartments (1914)
is a few blocks further west. Marshfield was spurred by the 1922 fire that destroyed the Front Street city center,
to a concern for fireproof construction. Following intense debate in the City Council on construction materials,
major construction following the fire was in concrete and masonry as evidenced in the Marshfield City Hall
(1923), the Egyptian Theater (1925), the Noble Building (1925) and the Coos Bay National Bank (1923). All
the above buildings are already listed on or are eligible for the National Register of Historic Places.
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BASIC STRUCTURAL DETAILS:

This two story concrete structure was built on pilings and is supported by a concrete perimeter foundation. The
pilings were necessitated by the landfill on top of tidal marshlands. The exterior walls are stuccoed concrete
with a paint finish. One interior concrete bearing wall sections off the fire department bay at the south end of
the building. The cell block area at the southeast corner is constructed with concrete walls and floors. The
weight of the concrete slab in the fire truck bay combined with the mass of the cell block are probably
responsible for the settlement of this end of the building. The interior floor systems in the rest of the building
are solid sawn wood joists on wood frame bearing walls and post and beam construction.

ALIENT R FEATURES:

The exterior of The Old City Hall building is in a remarkable state of preservation. The entry facade is virtually
unchanged from the architect's rendering published in 1923. The monumentality of the entrance was marred
for almost 25 years by the obstruction of the covered walkways put up as part of the Coos Bay Downtown Malil.
These canopies have recently (December 1995) been removed and passersby can see the whole facade once
more. The front facade is symmetrical about the broad entry stair that rises to the pair of entry doors surrounded
by sidelights and divided light transom. The entry is flanked by two pairs of engaged Roman Doric columns that
have a slim abacus, smooth shaft and plain entablature. The entrance is further distinguished by a modillioned
soffit on the projecting cornice. Centered on the parapet above the monumental entry and repeated just over
the main entrance doors are ornate cartouches. The bilateral symmetry of this facade is maintained on each
side of the entry by rectangular pilasters that divide and scale both the north and west facades. These pilasters
rise from the strong, high base of the building to wide, plain frieze. Between the pilasters are the original
wooden double hung sash windows with very simple surrounds. The first floor windows are single paned in
each sash and those of the second floor are eight panes over one.

The central bay on the west facade reflects the interior use of the space as a grand two story council chamber
hall. The council sat facing east backed by a double bank of rather plain windows with stained glass panes.
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The only significant alteration to the exterior has been in the southwest corner. Here the Fire Station bay doors
have been replaced with storefront windows, a small window on the south was converted to an exit and the
doorway connecting with the new fire station has been filled.

ORIGINAL INTERIOR FINISH AND SPATIAL ORGANIZATION:

The original building was spatially organized into three longitudinal bays running east and west. The front entry
was centered on the first northern bay. This bay consisted of offices on both upper floors and largely retains
the original organization today. The central bay contained the council chamber with a rostrum on the west end
and a balcony on the east. A skylight and double bank of windows on the west provided illumination to this large
space. The Fire Department occupied the southern bay with their doors opening onto 4th street. The sleeper’s
quarters were on the second floor with two brass poles providing immediate access to the engines on the
ground level. The Police Department occupied the eastern edge of all three bays with the cell block in the
extreme south corner.

The interior was finished in plaster lathe and wood trim with painted surfaces. The central entry and corridor
maintained the rather sparse Classical detailing of the entry facade. Rectangular pilasters surmounted by a
large cornice line the main floor circulation spaces. The original stairway is intact.

SUBSEQUENT IN IOR AL IONS:

The interior has undergone many transformations in its 73 year history. The first modification occurred when
the expanding city bureaucracy required more office space. The second story of the dramatic two story council
chamber was filled in to provide office spaces over the chamber and a courtroom in the space occupied by the
chamber balcony. This arrangement continued with only minor modifications until the city administration moved
into a new facility in 1978. The building then became known as the Old City Hall and subsequent owners
attempted with varying success to adapt the building for commercial use. The space that housed the fire
engines has been utilized rather consistently as a restaurant.
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Today the central second story space that originally was the upper area of the chamber has been adapted to
be a large ballroom facility with the north and south bays supporting that use with table seating. The bearing
wall separating the central and north bays has been opened into an arcade to join the spaces.
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AT E SIGNIFICANCE
) RY PARAGRAPH

The Coos Bay Old City Hall building meets National Register Criterion A as a well preserved embodiment of
the coming of age of the City of Marshfield (presently Coos Bay) and its connection to the interior of the State
of Oregon as a forward looking, modern, municipality.

In its early settlement (1850's through 1922), the bay and the sea provided the primary means of transportation,
and settlements grew up at strategic points on the bay. Traveling by boat, the closest city was San Francisco.
With the continued growth of the area, land was filled, new modes of transportation were becoming established
and land routes were defined. The area was able to continue a level of prosperity during the years following
the First World War, and growth continued, but the city still occupied its position on the waterfront.

A disastrous fire in 1922 served as the impetus for change. Many businesses were destroyed as well as the
Town Hall, jail and fire department. The focus of the business community shifted to streets named Market,
Commerce and Central as Front Street lay in ashes. The town fathers spent many council sessions in
discussions of the merits and comparative costs of concrete versus wood frame construction. Symbolic of its
land newly reclaimed from the bay, the city center was shifted west away from the bay front development that
had been supported over water. The citizens elected to construct the new city hall in fire resistant concrete.
A competition was held to select the most appropriate design for the new facility. A scheme in the Classical
Revival style that accommodated the local government, police and fire departments was selected for
construction at an intersection of two major arteries, and Coos Bay entered the Post War era secure in it's
position on the land and on the sea, executing a city planning concept that would change the face of the
community forever.




NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET

Section __8 Page __ 2 —Marshfield City Hall
name of property
Coos County, Oregon

county and state

CRITERION A: HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE

In its initial period of settlement and growth, Coos Bay embraced the sea and claimed recognition as the only
significant harbor on the coast between Puget Sound and San Francisco Bay. Puget Sound, the mouth of the
Columbia giving access to Portland and the Oregon interior, and Coos Bay and San Francisco Bay were the
ports of call for coastal steamers.

The steep terrain surrounding the bay restricted travel to the 12,380 acres of tidal sloughs and tributaries
feeding the bay. The towns naturally grew up focused on the waterfronts. Marshfield was the first incorporated

city in Coos or Curry County.

The area based its economy on the extraction of the resources of the land: its trees, the yield of area farms
and the coal under its surface. The movement of these resources was completely reliant on water transport
and the focus of the town was on its harbor. In 1894, the growing town of Marshfield built its first town hall on
pilings over the water on the east side of Front Street.

With the beginning of construction on a Southern Pacific Rail line in 1911 and the Roosevelt Highway in 1914,
the transportation focus began to change. The rail line opened in 1916 linking Coos Bay to the interior valley,
and in 1921 steamer ferry service connected the Coos Bay peninsula with the land to the north. The town of
Marshfield was beginning to grow and lessen its reliance on water transport.

On July 23, 1922, fire swept the length of the Marshfield harbor front, destroying most of the buildings on Front
Street; including the town hall, jail and fire station. This fire reduced to ashes the core of the frontier town with
its focus and reliance on the bay.

The decision to build a new City Hall and the choice of its location marked a critical turning point in the
development of the Coos Bay area.

Marshfield was forced by the 1922 fire to leave its historic orientation to the waterfront and move westward onto
newly filled tidelands. The very basis for continued economic growth had produced the needed spoils to literally
create new ground. The growth of the mills with their production of excess sawdust and the dredging of the bay
producing dredge spoils allowed the tidal lands to the west of Front Street to be filled and built upon.
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The fire also provoked a predilection for fireproof construction, as seen in the Egyptian Theater (1925), the
Noble Building (1925) and the Coos Bay National Bank (1923). All these buildings are already listed on or are
eligible for the National Register of Historic Places.

The decision to select the design of Tourtellotte and Hummel, a regionally important architectural office, also
marked the beginning of a desire for validation as a municipality. Tourtellotte and Hummel had designed the
Idaho State Capitol and were noted for designing government buildings, showing particular aptitude in the
Classic Revival style.

The Marshfield City Hall served as the seat of local government for over half a century, from 1923 until the
construction of a new facility in 1978. Located in the center of town on Central Street, its monumental
proportions and classic exterior gave “weight” to the urban institutions it housed (so much so in fact that the
south end of the building has settled appreciably into the ooze of the tidal fill on which it was built).

The building exterior has undergone only two major changes in its long history. The first change happened in
1954 when the Fire Department expanded into an annex appended to the south facade. The second occurred
when the city moved into its new quarters down the street in 1978 and the drive-in bays at the southwest corner
were infilled with display windows and the former fire/police department was rehabilitated into a restaurant.

Through time, this site has been influenced by many interesting trends in town planning and urban design. It
was first selected to mark the leaving behind of the waterfront. Originally designed to confront the street and
give a weighty presence to the local governmental authority, in the late 1960's and early 1970's, this
monumental presence was not so easily accepted. The national trend toward transforming city centers into
pedestrian malls severed the central transportation corridor; obscured the classical facade with shrubs, trees,
benches and small kiosks; and crossed it with canopies to “protect” pedestrians from winter rainfall. So strong
was the trend to disrupt old patterns of movement that the new city hall was constructed squarely across the
Central Street corridor.

Now in the 1990's, we are again seeking our roots and acknowledging the role the historic places and ways of
movement that were instrumental in getting us to where we are now: that perhaps hold the key to
understanding where we should go next. The mall appurtenances are being stripped away, and the newly
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revealed facade is being repaired and restored. The site continues to hold an important place in the heart of
our city.

CRITERION C: ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

The Marshfield City Hall is a very well preserved example of the functional aspect of the Roman Classical
Revival style common in municipal buildings of the early twentieth century. It reflects the desire to emulate
classical models of civic government superimposed on the pragmatic need for modern fire proof materials and
functional planning. The city fathers chose the important architectural firm of Tourtellotte and Hummel with
offices in Boise, ldaho and Portland, Oregon. This firm was noted for their civic buildings and had designed the
idaho State Capitol Building a decade earlier. In their designs for buildings of this type, Tourtellotte and
Hummel evoked the ideal of civic respectability by using the Classic Greek and Roman orders on prominent
facades.

Buildings in the Classical Greek and Roman Styles are unusual in the Coos Bay area. The only other noted
example of this style is the exceptional "Coos Bay National Bank Building" which is located nearby. Both of
these buildings were designed by John Tourtellotte.

The most salient features of the exterior design is its prominent entry framed by double pairs of engaged Roman
Doric columns. The entry facade is characterized by a strong A - B - C - B - A rhythm in its bays. Typical of the
period and the style, the exterior is predominately Classical in reference but other elements have been added
in to create an interesting eclectic blend including:

. Central entry with colossal engaged columns in the Roman Doric Order (slim abacus, smooth
shaft, and plain entablature).

. Square pilasters sectioning the north and west facades. Rhythms reflect changing interior
functions.

. Bilateral symmetry at entry facade.




NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

CONTINUATION SHEET
Section __8 Page S Marshfield City Hall
name of property
n regon
county and state
. Monumental proportions.
J Smooth exterior concrete finish.
. Entrance with double doors under a divided light transom and flanked by side lights.
. The cornice at entry portico features modillions.

. Strongly stated base.

. Flat roof with decorative parapet featuring shields and cartouche.
. Monumental flight of stairs at entry.
As Clark and Ross point out in Architecture Oregon Style, this period of Oregon architecture was characterized

by the "application of decorative elements to modern buildings, rather than an embodiment of classical forms".
With its exceptional exterior integrity, this building is an important element in the roster of historic buildings in

the Coos Bay area.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The following parcel of property being a portion of Lots 2 and 3, Block 16, Town of Marshfield, Coos County,
Oregon, beginning at the Northeast corner of Lot 2, Block 16, Town of Marshfield, Coos County, Oregon;
thence, along the East line of the said Lot 2, South 0° 54' 45" West a distance of 95.38 feet to a point lying 4.46
feet Northerly from the Southeast corner of Lot 3, of the said Block 16, thence, along the Southerly face of an
existing building wall and along said Southerly face extended, South 89° 59' 31" West a distance of 89.61 feet;
thence, South 0° 00' 29" East a distance of 0.70 feet; thence, South 89° 59' 31" West a distance of 6.23 feet
to a point lying 3.82 feet Easterly from the West line of the said Lot 3; thence, North 1° 04' 27" East a distance
of 96.07 feet to the North line of the said Lot 2, said point lying 4.32 feet Easterly of the Northwest corner of the
said Lot 2; thence, along the said North line of Lot 2 North 89° 59' 03" East a distance of 95.56 feet to the point

of beginning.

Containing 9,130 square feet, more or less, and being a portion of Lots 2 and 3, Block 16, Town of Marshfield,
Coos County, Oregon. The property is otherwise identified as Tax Lot 740l at said location.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The boundary described encompasses the property on which the building is constructed. The city lot has

retained the original property lines since the lot was purchased by the City of Marshfield in 1923. The fire
hall ammex of 1954, which stands on the adjoining tax lot to the south (Tax Lot 7400), is under
separate ownership and is not included in the nominated area.
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MARSHFIELD CITY HALL

FLOOR PLANS

ORIGINAL FLOOR PLANS: Council Chambers, Police
Department, Fire Department and City Offices.

1952 ALTERATIONS: High ceilinged Council Chamber was
converted to two stories with offices on the second
floor.

1978 The Fire Department has moved to their new quarters
and the police occupy most of the first floor.

1993 The City of Coos Bay has relocated to their new building
and the Old City Hall is modified for commercial use.

1996 The current owners have adapted the building to house
a ballroom, restaurant and offices.
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1996 Basement Floor Plan

MARSHFIELD CITY HALL
Coos Bay, Coos County, Oregon
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1853

1867

1874

1890-1910

1894

1911
1912
1914
1916

1921

1922

1923

1936

MARSHFI CITY HAL ILDING

CHRONOLOGY

James C. Tolman built first structure of Marshfield - a trade store.

John Perchbaker built a sawmill, shipyard and store. Sawdust from the mill
was used as fill in the tidal flats and homes were constructed on the newly
reclaimed land.

Marshfield became the first incorporated city in Coos or Curry County. The
citizens did not have a city hall but rented rooms where the council could
meet and where the recorder could work. One suite they used often was in
the Eldorado Hotel at 193 N. Front Street

The North jetty was constructed. In conjunction with the new jetty a shipping
channel was dredged. The dredge spoils provided more material for the
filling of the tidelands west of Front Street.

Town Hall was built on the east side of Front Street. It was wood framing on
pilings as was the adjacent jail.

Southern Pacific began construction of rail line.

Port of Coos Bay was established.

Construction started on the Roosevelt Highway.

Rail line linking Coos Bay to Eugene was completed.

A steamer ferry The Roosevelt began service between Glasgow to the north
and North Bend on the south shore of the bay.

July 23. Fire destroyed Front Street and burned the Town Hall. The Fire
Dept. lost one of their steamers in the conflagration.

The citizens vote to construct a new fireproof building. The New City Hall
with Police Department, jail and Fire Department was built at 375 Central
Avenue. The police had a three man force at this time.

After the fire, the city center shifted west and fireproof construction was
emphasized.

McCullough Bridge opened. (First known as Coos Bay Bridge. Renamed as
McCullough Bridge after Mr. McCullough died in 1946.Y




1944

1950

1954-5

1966

1968

1970

1978

1979

1994-96

1994(?)
1995
1995
1996

November 7. Marshfield reincorporated as Coos Bay.

The Knots Steamer (the survivor of the 19922 Fire) was displayed on a slab
in front of the City Hall Building.

Fire Department moved into new building adjacent to their old quarters in the
City Hall Building. The Steamer was moved to a slab against the south wall
of the Old Fire Station.

Coos Bay received a planning grant for a feasibility study for a downtown
mall. They retained Patterson/ Langford and Stewart.

August 16. Voters agreed to tax for a $1.2 million dollar city bond issue to
finance the construction of a downtown mall.

Planners continue to recommend a new building for city hall.

December 13. Police moved into new quarters in a new City Hall at 500
Central.

December 16. New City Hall dedicated.

Old City Hall bought by David Devi. The building is adapted for use as a
restaurant.

Deconstruction of the Coos Bay Downtown Mall. The Coverings over the
walkways are removed and streets are reopened to vehicular traffic.

Headhunter's restaurant closes and building vacant.
Property bought by Thomas and Barbara Thompson.
December 31. Grand Ballroom opened with gala New Year's Eve Party.

February 14. Garlands Restaurant opens in the area first occupied
by the Marshfield Fire Department.

June. The street in front of The Old City Hall is reopened to
through vehicle traffic.



Trail of Ownership

March 10, 1922
Jan. 8, 1979
Feb. 10, 1984
Dec. 17, 1984
June 17, 1986
Mar. 24, 1987
Dec. 13, 1989
Jul. 27, 1992
Aug. 31, 1992
Dec. 23, 1993
June 5, 1995

Dec. 19, 1995

Walter E. Butler to City of Marshfield

City of Coos Bay to David and Barbara Devi
Devi to State Savngs & Loan

S.S. & L. toJohn & Katherine Wright

Wrights to Freedom Federal Savings & Loan
F.F.S. & L. to Joann C. Hansen

Hansen to Old Coos Bay City Hall, Inc.
Hansen (Washington Fed. Sav.) to

W.F.S. to Cadgene, Vuyovich, Witter, Matthaei
Vuyovich quits.

Cadgene, etc. to Thomas Thompson

Barabara Thompson joined Thomas Thompson

$11,000

$97,000
$175,000
$100,000

$105,000

$ 50,000

$150,000



REPRODUCTIONS
OF
HISTORIC PHOTOGRAPHS
&
DOCUMENTS

1. Coos Bay was a major port of call for coasting steamers.

2. 1904 sketch of the Marshfield Jail. The page was photocopied from the
scrap book of the Coos Bay Police Department.

3. Architect’s drawing of proposed design for the new Marshfield City Hall,
published in the Christmas, 1923 edition of the Coos Bay Times.

4, “City Bonded for $75,000 to Build New City Hall’, Coos Bay Times,
September 19, 1922.

5. “New City Hall Built at a Total Cost of $75,000 is Fine One.” Coos Bay
Times, December, 1923. ;

6. “Marshfield Fire Department” Potential Southwestern Edition of the Coos
Bay Times. 1930. This steamer survived the 1922 fire and was on display
at the City Hall for many years.

7. Early aerial photo showing the center of Marshfield moving west away
from its traditional orientation to the bay front.

8. Photograph of City Hall from Potential Southwestern Edition of the Coos
Bay Times. 1930.

9. Photograph from the Coos Bay Police Department's scrap book of the
1929 force in front of the City Hall.

10.  Photograph from the Coos Bay Police Department’s scrap book of the
1962 force in front of the City Hall.

11.-22. Photographs from the Coos Bay Police Department's scrap book showing
conditions in the department and the jail before the move into their
quarters in the new City Hall.




23.

24.

25.

26.- 28. Photos showing the City Hall as it appeared during the 1970's before the

29.

Cover of the report prepared for the Coos Bay City Council by planners
Edson & Patterson in 1970. The space in front of the City Hall is
celebrated but the building itself is obscured by a heavy structure that
covers the walkways.

Map provided as part of the planning report that shows the central
downtown district of Coos Bay and the City Hall's central location in the
district.

Photograph of the model presented by the planners. Their scheme
places a new City Hall Building at the head of a pedestrian mall that

closes Central Avenue to vehicles. The Old City Hall is marked with the
arrow.

construction of the new facility.

Surveyors map of the Marshfield City Hall lot.




Columbia River

Pacific

Ocean

San Francisco Bay

1. Coos Bay was a major port of call for coasting
steamers.




Thiz iz 2 skeich »f the Marsnfield Tiiy Jail oy Mr. Dan Xeating of Th2
Marshfisld Tire Dapariment, This picture was drawn arsund 1004, Thig

‘all was located benlind Tiiy Hall on the bay side that iz now N. Front

(93]
ct
.

in the 200 vlock. This buliding was oroba®dly bullt the same time %ha* the
Zity Hall was constructed on or near the month of November, 1304, This
buillding »emained in use un*til the city fire of July, 1922, which destroyed

nosy of the wusiness disirict, including Zity “all and the City Jail,

2. 1904 sketch of the Marshfield Jail. The page was photocopied
from the scrap book of the Coos Bay Police Department.
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,000 to Build New City Hall", Coos Bay T

1922.

"City Bonded for $75

September 19,

4.

Will Be Erected

BT (1l

(ﬂ)

TH':’. most important work

ri_i;ht now is the building of a new
city hall. The peopi> have voted a
bond issue of $735,0v0 for this pur-
pose and the council has decided to
buy for $8000 a lot 10uxluy feet at
the southeast corner of Fourth street
and Central avenue as the site for
the new city hall
‘the nexi siap wilt ba rhe gojection|
of{ pians for the municipal building
and {t is i3 expected to have the
work well under way early in the‘
yea The city ha.ll is to contain:
a council room, offices for the citv
officials, police department quarters
and city jail a..d accommaodations for
the fire departmeant.
Hastened by the Fire

The building of a new city hall
xas hastened by the destruction of
the old city property in the fire
wanich swept o<way a large area of

lL’le source of s.pply of the water

on Lot at Corner of Central
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. nd Fourth Street—People Approved Plan of
City Council by Vote—Thirteen Blocks Paved in Year

th:zz}x:-;-_l and Commercial, 1 block, uzder .
Marshfield as a city has on handjcoustruction for hurd surface pavae

ment and sidewalks.,  Cost $4000,
Purchased land

"An important transaction the city

made during 1922 was the purchase

from the Southern Oregon Company

of ahout 1300 acres of land which

makes up the wutershed surroundiog

VB i e N

s gm
wer

s
e

company. This purchase was ‘madse ;

tag a precautiou so the oity wo‘u}da

be able to control all of the lami~
which drains toward the water st!p-e
ply. The purchase price weas $lo.-{,
731, and it is to be paid for in sixi}

quarterly installments. The mzi-’g
ter of the vity buying the plant ofi
the Coos Bay Water Compauy as_}

under discussion for some time bot ﬁ
was fically turced down by thei
‘council. §
| Will Have New Home ';

During the year the city pur-%

$75,000 bond issue was proposed and;
passed by the people. Out of this!
sunmi tie site is to be paid for acd|
|the building erected and equipped.

Alier the $fre the c¢ity secured
temporary 7juarters. The recorde:
.has his office at the armory and the

jail adjoining.
Str~ct Improvement

1as follows:

‘l)lm ks from Hemlovk nocth tu con

frame buildings on North Froat:
street. It was decided by the coun-‘,
¢il that if a eity hall were to be.
built it should be a good one, so thei

'ire apparatus is kept at the Motor'ed to properly function. S
Inn garage, with a temporary city! The city also cou.ributed to (h.fg

Front street north, paved for Yinlected. Tho unew council will

chased 1000 feet of hose for the nre£§
department and also some otherg
equipment. It was necessary to pu:%
chase a good deal in the way of cop E
phes on account of property de-.f.
istroyed in the fire. While the bigfé
;ﬁ‘.e created quite a loss and lncon-g
venience to the municipality, belorge
'another year passes the city adminsg
istration will be housed iz & fn
new city hall with everrthing need-%

=,

development of an auto park t'
tourists 2t the old race r.rack whic%

The city has during tbe year laid|Marsii{ield now owas.
13 blocks of hard surface paving
at an approximate cost of $34,000.
The street improvements mude were,duy of the yoar begin another te

‘ City Oflicialy
Duncan Ferguson will on the fire;

as mavor ,to which office he was red
9ot
-

N

- composed of George E. Cook, W. ?,

fneet with walectront road at city | Wilson, . K. Jones, David Nolsogg

)
l Hmits,  Cost 325,004

W. N. Ekbiad and M. H. Mutlay,.}

1 Swecomd street nortit, paved {rom John Butler, who hus been cilt

1
Bireh to Elm avenue, 5 blorks, Cos
37000,

tirecorder {or a number of years pas
will enter upon the dutles of anctde
-fterm. J. T. Brand s city attornes

X

" Tenth street north between Cen
N




New City Hall Built at a Total
Cost of $75,000 is Fine One

Building Is Very Handsome One and Will Equal Any Municipal
' Structure in the State—Council Room
Is Fine Place

ARSHFIELD'S new 376,000 city
M hall will rank with any municipal
pullding in Oregon In bewutly of ar-
chitecture and suitablllty for nceds
ot tho city. In its two stories and
basement aro found a largo council
chamber with balcony, 'roomy oflicos
for all tho cily ofMeclals, pollce nla-
{lon with flve concreto colls, large
quarters for the fire departmont,
all of ampls dimensiona and woll-
lighted.

Concrote Building

The building itself which ls con-
structed of concreto with walls 10
and 12 Inches In thickness, will
cost in the neighborhood of $60,000.
q4 The sum of $11,000 was 'paid for
the site and the balance of Lhe
money ralsed by the $76.000 bond
1ssue will be expended for {urmish-
ings.

The bullding cxtends 87 feet
along Contral avenue and 83 along
Fowrth street. )

The building I8 of Greok archi-
tecture with pleasing simplicity of
line. The GCGreek templo offect I8
especially marked in the ontrance.
set forward & little and flanked on
eithicr side by rounded columns sur-
mounted by molded stone Dorie
capitaln. Steps In true Greck stylo
lead up to the outrance. The en-
trancc s surmounted by a modified
Greek triangular frontal topped, in
torn,'by a aeal and flag pole.

Handsome Entrance
J At cach end of the front of the|
building is a part set forward. sur-
% mounted with a frontal similar to
that of the entrance, each upheld,
by two pairs of square columns with |

Dorlc capitals and plinths similar|

ivst room,
Flve Joll Cella

The polien  atation  #A10inn
™1 rrom,  In tho panthinn~t
TUr oAl e hettitee e
T T Wit the police
The cedl vooms. The smel
and one large cne “will be asigned
to the men. On a level above the
men’s cells are two cells for women.
These cells are concrete through-
out, except for the fron bars of the
doors and. windows. Each cell sec-

soavemress b

af{'ccp ’
paX—2

cornice extendlng around the top
of the building is of concrete. The
 whole of the outslde of the building
will be of white waterproof cement.

Fine Council Chamber

front entrancs one enters a tlied
rotunda. On the right is the re-
corder's ofice; on the left is a hall
on which two large ofiices for other
officlals open, and in front is the
entrance to the city council cham-
ber,

When completed the council
chamber will be ons of the most
beautitul rooms ip, the city. It is
'30 by 60 feet In size and its height
is the full two stories of the build-
fzg. The end ot the room next
Fourth street is almost filled with
cathedral glass windows. The sec-
tion set aside for the council itsell
Is in this end. It fs raised and set
.0ff from the remainder of the room
by a railing. A large gallery ex-
tends across the other end of the
room.

The blankness of the cove ceiling
I8 relleved by beams crossing it in
either direction. The ;large 8Ky~
light is of cathedral glass simllar
to that of the windows. The room
Is finished in very 1lighit cream
¢olor,

Goo} Office Tight
The recorder's office is fitted ~ith
3 vauit. Tho eofice Is roomy and

' well lighted with windows ou hoth

Central and Fourth streots. The
other offices on tho firat floor arc
also well lighted.

The clvic club has heon alletted
a8 room on the little hallway rnoning
from the main hall to the pollce de-

to those of the rqund entrance col-| Pirlment quarters et the aoutiinnat

umas,

On the Fourth street side are four| " flttod with toliet Mxturen
The | %Il ba mada Into a eort of ladicy

pairs of the square’ columns.

5. "New City Hall Built
$75,000 is FIne One.

December 1923.

Thiz voom
it

forner af the hulllinz.

at a Total Cost of
" Coos Bay Times

After climbing the steps of the,

tion s fitted with a shower.
Eccond ¥Floor Offices

The stair to the second story is
at the east end of the hallway. A
row of offices extends along the
central side of the second floor with
the city engineer’'s office over that
of the recorder’'s, The engineer
will also have a vault. A doorway
across the hall from these offices
opens into the balcony of the coun-
cil room. This balcony will seat
ahout 75 persons.

Firemen Cared For

More offices open onto the hall
which leads from the maln hallway
to the firemen’s quarters at the
south side of the structure. ’
- The firemen are assigned a large
bedroom, a dormitory with bullt-in
lockers for the men, a large club-
room, showers and other tollet
rooms on the south side of the
building. Thelf section takes nrac-
tically the whole of 30 feet clear
across the back. Brass poles {rom
the dormitory and tne clubroom will
accelerate the passage of the fire-
men to the apparatus rosm o the
first floor.

This apparatus room Is the name
size as tho conncil room, 30 by 60

font. . Two larme entrances  open
from it onto Fonrth streot. Onen
apecinl  feature of the fite cauir-

ment Is a shalt oxtending. from

basamant to reof in which hota mny
hn atretchnd to drain.  Speciel 1EL-
apparatus wiil holst ths hos?

ing
o chaft,

goctions np Irfe th
Anr ey Meanted

The bWwnillieg In finlghnd throushe-
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"Marshfield Fire Department" Potential Southwestern Edition of the

6.

1930. This steamer survived the 1922 fire and was

display at the City Hall for many years.

Coos Bay Times,




7.

Early aerial photo showing the center of Marshfield moving west
away from its traditional orientation to the bay front.
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force in front of the City Hall
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Photograph from the Coos Bay Police Department's scrap book of the
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front of the City Hall.
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1962 force
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11

Entrance to the Police Department
~ in City Hall at 375 Central Avs.

Photographs from the Coos Bay Police Department's scrap book showing
conditions in the department and the jail before the move into their
guarters in the new City Hall.

]

1
Municipal Court Room = . 4
later the Officers Briefing —
Room in City Hall, 375 Central
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Cover of the report
Edson and Patterson
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covers the walkways.




P
;

- % ¥0 Juousive

ﬁ;u

~ :Ie-et.

;_.- M

[

kn.-hnpnﬁ“n.n

m.ﬂm%,ﬁﬁzg

=3

NS o

» 1% Ous

MOUHOWOL HILNID ALD

WVH90ud

P 20000e.

NOO3IHO ‘AvEB S00D 40 ALID 3HL HO4

ANIN40T13IAIA  JOOHYUOLAHOIIN

p—
——

. ‘m e ST T T eEn e
— T e = -

——

]

nGALAND vl

i -

LI

_

LNLRUTY

B

avt

I
o ,_ . . e
_ I A | rr ) ﬁ AL

e _ T

A

TRV
.w.— .h

RESNLTT avi

CENTRAL  ave

|

| .._ _Tl_ _

ANSERSON  avi

., H.__ ,,.

. .u Hio

T :__i_ _l.ll ]

sesesecsvesssessense
e weve smw ase

KL T
| LT EL
e * T
LR T
B _ ﬂ e

~aALL eve

o 12 e ¥VAN OGN
reraencs  JON

aN3031

ion

ty Hall's central locat

i

1ng report that shows the central

Y and the C

ict.

tr

1S

Map provided as part of the Plann
the d

downtown district of Coos Ba

in

24.




e 4

:?‘-éi;‘-yw: b

-

o

ey

25. Photograph of the model presented by the planners. Their
scheme places a new City Hall Building at the head of a
pedestrian mall that closes Central Avenue to vehicles.
The 01d City Hall is marked with the arrow.
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Photograph #1:

Photograph #2:
Photograph #3:

Photograph #4:

Photograph #5:

Photograph #6:
Photograph #7:
Photograph #8:

Photograph #9:

Photograph #10:
Photograph #11:
Photograph #12:
Photograph #13:
Photograph #14:

PHOTOGRAPHS

Northwest corner showing main facade. Photo taken during demolition
mall covering.

Main entry stair.
West elevation.

South end of west elevation infill at the showing location of former
firehouse doors.

South elevation. The canopy erected during a remodel in the late
1970's has been removed. Early windows and man door of the fire
department were filled at that time.

Interior hallway looking north.

Interior of main entry.

Interior of main entry looking south.

Cell block area stairs.

Cell block area - women'’s cells.

Women'’s cell block shower.

Entry door into cell block.

Historic photograph (1977) showing mall covering.

Aerial view (1978).




